
1



2



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Bois D’Arc MUD – Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting on March 20, 2020  Page 1 

BOIS D’ ARC MUICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
14101 E FM 1396 

HONEY GROVE, TEXAS 75446 
(903) 378-7361

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

DATE: Friday, March 20, 2020 

TIME: 9:00 AM 

PLACE: District office located at 14101 East FM 1396, Honey Grove, Texas 75446 

1. Call to Order and Declaration of Quorum
• Meeting called to order by Rhonda Cunningham at 9:00 a.m. and a quorum was declared

with Board Directors present: Rhonda Cunningham, Bob Payne, Gary Vincent, Donna
Ryser, Brad Lane, Larry Franklin, and J. W. Caraway.

• District Staff Present: Office Manager Melinda Gibbs, Field Manager Hayden Lane

2. Public Comments (Limit of 3 Minutes per speaker).
• None

3. Discuss and take action on the consent items consisting of:
a. Minutes of the February 21, 2020 Regular Board Meeting.
b. District’s monthly financials for February 2020

• After review, Brad Lane made the motion to approve the Minutes and accept the
financials as presented. Gary Vincent seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

4. Accept the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for the District’s General Election on May 2,
2020.  Discuss and take action to adopt Ordinance No. 2020-003, declaring three (3) unopposed
candidates for the office of Director At-Large in the General Election to be held May 2, 2020;
adopting an Order to cancel the General Election; and providing an effective date.

• After review, motion made by Brad Lane and seconded by Bob Payne to adopt Ordinance
No 2020-003 as presented.  The motion passed unanimously

5. Presentations by the District’s Engineer including Lower Bois D’Arc Reservoir Project/NTMWD.

a. Discuss and take action to approve Change Order #2 from Pittard Construction
Company for Waterline Disinfection Building on FM 1396.

o After review, motion made by Bob Payne to approve the change order as
presented.  Larry Franklin seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

3



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Bois D’Arc MUD – Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting on March 20, 2020  Page 2 

b. Discuss and take action to approve Change Order #1 from McWhorter Backhoe
Service for CR 2950 & CR 2900 Waterline Project.

o After review, motion made by Donna Ryser to approve the change order as
presented.  Bob Payne seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

c. Discuss and take action to approve Pay Application #3 from McWhorter Backhoe
Service for CR 2950 & CR 2900 Waterline Project.

o After review, motion made by Brad Lane to approve the pay application as
presented.  J.W. Caraway seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

d. Discuss and take action to approve Pay Application #4 from Phoenix Fabricators for
Elevated Tank Project on FM 1396.

o After review, motion made by J.W. Caraway to approve the pay application
as presented.  Larry Franklin seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

e. Discuss and take action to approve Pay Application #3 from Underwood Inc. for CR
2900 Waterline Project.

o After review, motion made by Donna Ryser to approve the pay application as
presented.  Brad Lane seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

f. Discuss and take action to approve Pay Application #5 from Pittard Construction
Company for Waterline Disinfection Building on FM 1396.

o After review, motion made by Bob Payne to approve the change order as
presented.  Brad Lane seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

6. Monthly Reports:

a. Engineer’s Report – DBI Engineers

b. General Manager’s Report

c. Finance Committee – Rhonda Cunningham

Rhonda presented her written report of the District accounts as of February 29, 2020.

d. Policies and Procedures – Donna Ryser

Reviewed Donna’s written reports regarding various policy and procedures items and
correlated expenses in the Board packet.

e. Budget Committee – Gary Vincent

Gary presented his written report for February 2020

f. Attorney update – Maria Huynh

7. Discuss and take action regarding the purchase or contract to obtain a security system for the
District office and properties.

4



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Bois D’Arc MUD – Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting on March 20, 2020  Page 3 

• This Item was tabled.

8. Discuss and take action to approve the Construction Water and Meter Agreement (Temporary
Water Service Agreement) between the District and Clint Walker.

• After review, Brad Lane made the motion to approve the agreement as presented.  Donna
Ryser seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

9. Recess into Executive Session pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code Section 551.074, to deliberate
personnel matters.

• The Board recessed into Executive Session at 10:09 a.m.

a. Reconvene into Open Session.
o The Board reconvened into Open Session at 10:59 a.m.

b. Discuss and possibly take action regarding hiring of the District’s Operations Manager
and/or Field Employee, and other actions in connection there to.

o Brad Lane made the motion to offer Will Caraway as a full-time field operator at
$15.00 per hour to begin as soon as possible.  Donna Ryser seconded the motion
and it passed 6-0-1 (with 6 for the motion, 0 against the motion, and 1 abstention
by J.W. Caraway).

10. Adjournment.

• Meeting adjourned at 11:00 a.m.

APPROVED by the Board of Directors of Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District, 
Fannin County, Texas, on this 17th day of April, 2020. 

[District seal] 

________________________________ 
Gary Vincent, Secretary-Treasurer 

5



EJCDC® C-941, Change Order. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.  

Page 1 of 1 

Change Order No. 1 

Date of Issuance: 4/17/20 Effective Date: 4/17/20 
Owner: Bois D’ Arc MUD Owner's Contract No.:  
Contractor: Underwood Inc. Contractor’s Project No.:  
Engineer: Daniel & Brown Inc. Engineer's Project No.:  
Project: Waterline Projects CR 2900 Contract Name: 

The Contract is  modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 

Description: Reduction/Addition in original quantities; Additional items 

Attachments:  See breakdown. 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES 
[note changes in Milestones if applicable] 

Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times: 
Substantial Completion:  20 

$ 24,125.00 Ready for Final Payment:  26 
days 

 [Increase/Decrease]  from previously approved Change 
Orders No.    to No.   : 

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change 
Orders No.        to No.       : 
Substantial Completion:   

$ N/A Ready for Final Payment:    
days 

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 
Substantial Completion:  20 

$ 24,125.00 Ready for Final Payment:  26 
days 

[Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order: 
Substantial Completion:   

[Increase] of this ChangeOrder: 

$ 1,945.00 Ready for Final Payment:   
days or dates 

Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: 
Substantial Completion:  20 

Contract Price incorporating this Change 

Order: $26,070.00 Ready for Final Payment:  26 
days 

RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED: 
By: By: By: 

Engineer (if required) Owner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature) 
Title: Project Engineer Title

 
Title
 Date: 4-13-20 Date

  
Date
 

Approved by Funding Agency (if 
applicable) 
By: Date: 
Title:  

6



Ite
m

 #
De

sc
rip

tio
n

U
ni

t
O

rig
in

al
 

Q
ua

nt
ity

Re
vi

se
d 

Q
ua

nt
ity

U
ni

t P
ric

e
To

ta
l P

ric
e 

Ch
an

ge

1
4"

 W
at

er
lin

e
LF

50
0

47
0

14
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

(4
20

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
   

 
2

En
ca

se
 E

xi
st

in
g 

W
at

er
lin

e
LF

16
0

0
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
(3

,2
00

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
 

3
O

pe
n 

Cu
t C

ou
nt

y 
Ro

ad
LF

60
12

0
18

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

08
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
4

4"
 G

at
e 

Va
lv

e
EA

2
5

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  

5
Co

nn
ec

t N
ew

 4
" W

at
er

lin
e 

to
 

Ex
ist

in
g 

4"
 W

at
er

lin
e

EA
2

3
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

1,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

9
Tr

ac
er

 W
ire

LF
50

0
47

0
0.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

5.
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l P

ric
e 

Ch
an

ge
1,

94
5.

00
$ 

   
   

  
O

rig
in

al
 C

on
tr

ac
t A

m
ou

nt
24

,1
25

.0
0

$ 
   

   26
,0

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

8%

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

 #
1 

Q
ua

nt
iti

es
 C

R 
29

00

Co
nt

ra
ct

 A
m

ou
nt

 w
ith

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er

7



8



9



10



11



 

Bois D’Arc MUD – Amendment to the Construction Water and Meter Agreement Page 1 
 AR Consultants – Meter No. 19862334 at CR 2655 & CR 2645 

 AMENDMENT TO THE  
CONSTRUCTION WATER AND METER AGREEMENT 

(Temporary Water Service Agreement) 
 

This Amendment to the Construction Water and Meter Agreement (“Amendment”) 
is made and entered into by and between Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District (the 
“District”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, and AR Consultants, Inc. 
(“Customer”), a Texas for-profit corporation, effective January 17, 2020 (the “Effective 
Date”). 

 R E C I T A L S 

WHEREAS, the District and Customer entered into the Construction Water and 
Meter Agreement (the “Contract”) effective January 17, 2020 and was duly executed by 
Customer on February 3, 2020 and by the District on February 21, 2020;   

WHEREAS, the location of the Meter indicated in the Contract is correct and 
Customer has been taking and paying for water from the Meter at said location assigned 
to Customer; 

WHEREAS, the District discovered a typographical error of the meter number in 
the Contract for the Meter assigned to Customer at said location after the Contract was 
executed by each party; 

WHEREAS, the District and Customer finds it is in the best to amend the Contract 
to reflect the correct meter number assigned to Customer therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the District and 
Customer agree as follows: 

  1. Amendment of the Contract. The second recital (2nd WHEREAS paragraph) 
of the Contract is to be fully replaced and amended as follows:   

“WHEREAS, the District assigned its Meter No. 19862334 for a fire hydrant 
located at CR 2655 and CR 2645 in Fannin County, Texas (the “Meter”) to 
Customer;” 

2. Definitions.  Any capitalized terms not defined specifically in this 
Amendment shall mean the same as those capitalized or defined terms contained in the 
Contract. 

 3. Ratification of the Contract.   

The District and Customer hereby ratify, affirm, and republish the Contract as modified by 
this Amendment to be a valid and enforceable agreement between the parties pursuant 
to the terms of the Contract.   

 

12



 

Bois D’Arc MUD – Amendment to the Construction Water and Meter Agreement Page 2 
 AR Consultants – Meter No. 19862334 at CR 2655 & CR 2645 

4. Authority.  The undersigned, on behalf of each respective party to this 
Amendment and by his or her signatures, bind, covenant, represent and warrant that each 
has the authority of their principal to bind the respective party to the terms, covenants, 
and conditions of this Amendment and the Contract.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF each of the parties has caused this Amendment to be 

executed by its duly authorized representative in multiple copies, each of equal dignity, 
on the date or dates indicated below. 

 
 
EXECUTED by the DISTRICT on this ______ day of ________________, 2020. 
 

Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District, 
a political subdivision of the State of Texas 

 
 
 
 

         By: _____________________________________ 
       Rhonda Grubbs Cunningham, President 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    §   

  § 
COUNTY OF FANNIN   § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me, the undersigned authority, on the 
___ day of _________________, 2020, by Rhonda Grubbs Cunningham, as President 
and on behalf of Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District, a political subdivision of the State of 
Texas, for the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 
 
 [Notary seal] 

 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 

Bois D’Arc MUD – Amendment to the Construction Water and Meter Agreement Page 3 
 AR Consultants – Meter No. 19862334 at CR 2655 & CR 2645 

 
EXECUTED by CUSTOMER on this ______ day of ________________, 2020. 
 

AR Consultants, Inc. 
a Texas for-profit corporation 

 
 
 

         By: _____________________________________ 
       S. Alan Skinner, President 
 
        
 
  
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    §   

  § 
COUNTY OF _________________ § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me, the undersigned authority, on the 
_____ day of ____________________, 2020, by S. Alan Skinner, as President and on 
behalf of AR Consultants, Inc., a Texas for-profit corporation, for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed. 

 
 

[Notary seal] 
 

       _____________________________________  
       Notary Public, State of Texas 

14



 
 
    James W. Wilson          Maria Huynh       
    jwilson@jww-law.com        mhuynh@jww-law.com     
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

To: The Board of Directors of  Re: PUC Orders during COVID-19 
 Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District  (late fees, deferred payment, 

disconnections, income) 
 
From: Maria Huynh Date: April 17, 2020 
 
 
As you may have heard, the Public Utility Commission of Texas (PUC) issued an Order 
on March 26, 2020 in Docket No. 50664 suspending various statutes regarding 
penalty for delinquent bills, requirements for deferred payment plan, disconnect 
for failure to pay bill or failure to pay under a deferred payment agreement, and 
other similar statutes for sewer and electric utilities. This Order applies only during the 
time that Governor Abbott issues the Declaration of State of Disaster for COVID-19. 

After reviewing the definitions in the statutes, the Order does not apply to MUDs, SUDs, 
and WSCs; however, TRWA has advised that all water entities should comply with the 
PUC’s Order and comply: 

• Do not charge late fees for delinquent payment of bills 
 

• Enter into a deferred payment agreement with the customer if requested  
 

o TRWA has suggested that the District should not strictly follow your Rate 
Order / Tariff’s strict requirements to authorize a deferred payment 
plan.  For example: 
 

 If your Rate Order allows only for deferred payment if you have not 
been disconnected twice during the previous 12 months, you should 
waive this requirement  
 

 If deferred payment agreement is allowed only if the amount owed 
is 3x an average monthly bill, you should waive this requirement 
 

 Waive any interest charge per Rate Order / Tariff  
 

• Do not disconnect if a customer fails to pay a bill or fails to pay a deferred payment  
 

Although your entity is not required to follow this, we urge you to consider following 
TRWA’s guidance during this time, if you have not already done so. 

15



  Page 2 
 
 

There has been no mention of other water statutes being suspended; therefore, you can 
disconnect for other reasons according to your Rate Order / Tariff.  

• Examples: customer wrongfully submeters, cross-connection / hazards, damage 
to District’s property, theft of water, etc. 
 

• If notice is required in your Rate Order for those disconnections, you will still have 
to follow those notice requirements 
 

 

We understand that this pandemic and following TRWA’s guidance will affect the income 
for the District.  PUC has also issued another Order that allows certain IOUs and other 
entities to eventually seek recovery for lost income due to COVID-19.  At this time, we 
understand that this Order does not apply to your entity.   

 

However, you may want to keep diligent record of expenses and income loss during this 
time, in case the PUC later allows MUDs, SUDs, and WSCs to also seek recovery due to 
COVID-19.  Please discuss this with your entity’s accountant on the best methods to keep 
record. 

 

 

16


	Cost Revisions.pdf
	Sheet1

	Cost Revisions 4-13-20.pdf
	Sheet1




